



Student Government  
Office of the Student Body President

3000 J. Wayne Reitz Union  
PO Box 118505  
Gainesville, FL 32611-8505  
352-392-1665 Tel  
352-392-8072 Fax

Dear Senate President Shaw,

Impact Party was founded in the Fall of 2015 on the basis of being dedicated to students and above party politics and gridlock. Inspire Party was founded in the Fall of 2017 on the premise of making a positive difference for all University of Florida students. I believe both parties in Student Senate have lost sight of their ultimate goal, serving our student body. Student Senate should not be objecting to student organization line-item requests or allocations funding for political purposes. Additionally, instead of lowering the threshold to approve executive appointments, the branches should communicate, collaborate, and compromise with one another. What I mean by communicate, collaborate, and compromise is not sending well over 100 public record requests over the last five weeks, but rather means actually talking to one another and working for the betterment of the student body. For these reasons, I veto Student Senate Law 2019-100 (Student Senate Bill 2019-1046) so the Student Senate can take another look at these revisions and rethink the implication of diminishing how many votes are needed for some of the highest SG positions on campus. It is my hope that with this veto, the Student Senate can re-evaluate the last few weeks and ensure that they are serving our student body.



4-23-19

Ian M. Green  
Student Body President  
Trustee, Board of Trustees  
University of Florida

**STUDENT SENATE LAW 2019-100**

**TITLE: 200 Comprehensive Code Revision**

**AUTHORS: Majority Party Leader Tony Emmett**

**SPONSORS: Student Body President-Elect Michael Murphy**

CHAPTER 204 ASSISTANT TREASURER (87-169, 90-141, 98-100, 2000-136)

204.1 In accordance with Article IV, Section 7 of the Constitution of the Student Body of the University of Florida, the Student Senate does hereby create the office of Assistant Treasurer, as provided by law for the wellbeing of the Student Body.

204.2 The Student Body Treasurer shall have the power to appoint as many Assistant Treasurers as is deemed necessary to ensure the efficient operation of Student Government Finance. Appointments are subject to a required two-thirds (2/3) approval by Student Senators present and voting in the Student Senate.

204.3 The Assistant Treasurer(s) shall assist the Student Body Treasurer in any capacity that the Treasurer deems appropriate.

204.4 An Assistant Treasurer may, upon written consent of the Treasurer, act on the Treasurer's behalf in the capacity of Student Body Treasurer.

204.5 No Assistant Treasurer may serve as Student Body Treasurer in the absence of the Student Body Treasurer for a period of longer than two (2) weeks without a two-thirds (2/3) approval of those present and voting at a regular meeting of the Student Senate.

CHAPTER 205 ASSISTANT TREASURER (87-169, 90-141, 98-100, 2000-136)

~~209.1 In accordance with Article IV, Section 7 of the Constitution of the Student Body of the University of Florida, the Student Senate does hereby create the office of Assistant Treasurer, as provided by law for the wellbeing of the Student Body.~~

~~209.2 The Student Body Treasurer shall have the power to appoint as many Assistant Treasurers as is deemed necessary to ensure the efficient operation of Student Government Finance. Appointments are subject to a required two thirds (2/3) approval by Student Senators present and voting in the Student Senate.~~

- ~~209.3 The Assistant Treasurer(s) shall assist the Student Body Treasurer in any capacity that the Treasurer deems appropriate.~~
- ~~209.4 An Assistant Treasurer may, upon written consent of the Treasurer, act in the Treasurer's behalf in the capacity of Student Body Treasurer.~~
- ~~209.5 No Assistant Treasurer may serve as Student Body Treasurer in the absence of the Student Body Treasurer for a period of longer than two (2) weeks without a two-thirds (2/3) approval of those present and voting at a regular meeting of the Student Senate.~~

## CHAPTER 205 EXECUTIVE CABINET NOMINATION CONFIRMATION PROCESS

205.1 The Student Body President shall nominate the Executive Cabinet within fourteen (14) days of taking office. The Student Body President-elect may nominate the Executive Cabinet at the last regular meeting of the Student Senate during the spring semester.

205.2 The Student Body President shall submit Executive Cabinet nominations to the Replacement and Agenda Committee Chair no later than 5:00 PM ET two days before the Replacement and Agenda Committee meeting date.

205.3 The Replacement and Agenda Committee shall review each nominee to determine if they meet all qualifications required to hold the office for which they have been nominated. The Replacement and Agenda Committee shall place all nominations submitted by the Student Body President on the agenda to be reviewed by the Student Senate.

205.4 The Student Senate shall hear these nominations individually, unless otherwise agreed to by a majority vote of the Student Senate.

205.5 The Student Senate shall debate nominations to the Executive Cabinet in accordance with the structure of debate established in the Student Senate Rules & Procedures.

205.6 Executive Cabinet Officers shall assume office upon majority confirmation by the members of the Student Senate present and voting. If the Student Body President-elect nominations for the Executive Cabinet are confirmed at the last regular meeting of the Student Senate during the spring semester, the Executive Cabinet Officer shall assume office when the Student Body President-elect assumes office.

CHAPTER 215 STUDENT GOVERNMENT PRODUCTIONS (69-112, 69-115, 71-118, 71-140, 72-161, 91-103, 96-127, 98-100, 2003-125, 2006-133, 2007-129, 2014-112, 2016-105)

- 215.1 Student Government Productions, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from positions those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 215.11 A member of Student Government Productions may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 215.2 Student Government Productions shall exist as an agency of Student Government, in order to provide a well-balanced variety of free and paid entertainment throughout the academic year. Student Government Productions shall be the sole Student Government-funded agency for booking youth-oriented, contemporary entertainment and shall coordinate all contractual, financial, promotional and production details for these productions.
- 215.3 There shall be a Student Government Productions Chairperson who shall be responsible for scheduling entertainment, negotiating contracts, formulating a budget, and overseeing all other activities of Student Government Productions.
- 215.31 The Chairperson shall coordinate communications and serve as a liaison between the organization and the Stephen C. O'Connell Center, the UF Administration, the UF Athletic Association, the Student Government Executive Committee, the Student Senate and any other group or business with whom the organization regularly does business.
- 215.32 The Chairperson shall make an oral report to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress of Student Government Productions.
- 215.4 The Student Government Productions Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 215.5 The Student Government Productions Chairperson shall appoint a minimum of two (2) and a maximum of four (4) Vice-Chairpersons subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The Vice-Chairpersons shall assist the Chairperson in all phases of the operation of the organization and shall serve terms running concurrently with that of the Chairperson.
- 215.6 Student Government Productions shall have a Comptroller who shall be responsible for overseeing the financial and accounting procedures of Student

Government Productions.

- 215.61 The Comptroller shall be appointed by the Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of the Student Body President taking office.
- 215.62 The Comptroller may appoint up to two Assistant Comptrollers to assist in overseeing the financial and accounting procedures of Student Government Productions.
- 215.63 INTENT: It is the intent of this act to provide quality entertainment to the student body while maintaining fiscal responsibility. The Comptroller shall ensure that Student Government Productions adheres to the budget of the current fiscal year. The Chairperson shall oversee, and be the primary decision-maker, on all production aspects of Student Government Productions. It is also the intent of this act that the Comptroller possess a sound financial background. Furthermore, the Chairperson should be familiar with the internal procedures of Student Government Productions.
- 215.7 The remainder of the organization's structure shall be left up to the Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.
- 215.8 The Student Government Productions Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds~~ **(2/3) majority** vote of the members present and voting of Student Senate.
- 215.81 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall appoint another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays or academic breaks.
- 215.82 The Chairperson and Comptroller shall serve in office from the time that the Student Senate approves the appointment until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET.
- 215.83 Should the Chairperson or Comptroller resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedures used to make the original appointment.
- 215.84 Any replacement Chairperson or Comptroller approved shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 215.41 or 215.61, whichever is applicable.
- 215.9 Before any offer is made by Student Government Productions to a prospective entity, an event planning budget request shall be submitted by the Chairperson of Student Government Productions to the Comptroller and subject to the Comptroller's approval. Said approval is to be based solely on financial concerns as determined by the Comptroller prior to an offer being made. Upon approving an event budget and the offer subsequently being made, the Comptroller shall

consider the funds enumerated in the said budget encumbered until either the offer is ultimately refused or the event is concluded.

- 215.91 An event planning budget shall detail expected expenses for a specific event.
- 215.92 The Student Government Productions advisor shall sign the final offer proposal prior to releasing it to the prospective entity. The offer shall not be sent without the advisor's signature.
- 215.93 Upon submission of the event budget, the Comptroller will have a maximum period of three (3) business days to approve, disapprove, or edit said budget. If no action is taken within three (3) business days, it is up to the discretion of the Student Government Productions Chairperson whether the offer will move forward. Sub-budget requests submitted to and by the Chairperson shall be forwarded to:
1. Student Government Office Manager for verification of date
  2. Student Body President
  3. Student Government Finance

CHAPTER 216 ACCENT (68-124, 70-118, 71-140, 71-147, 72-161, 77-116, 79-264, 80-113, 80-163, 81-112, 82-145, 84-174, 89-106, 91-103, 96-127, 98-100, 2004-127, 2007-124, 2016-105)

- 216.1 ACCENT, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 216.11 A member of ACCENT may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 216.2 ACCENT shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to provide a wide range of speakers throughout the academic year and shall coordinate all contractual, financial, promotional and production details of these lectures.
- 216.3 There shall be an ACCENT Chairperson who shall be responsible for scheduling entertainment, negotiating contracts, formulating a budget, and overseeing all other activities of ACCENT.
- 216.31 The Chairperson shall coordinate communications and serve as a liaison between the organization and the Stephen C. O'Connell Center, the UF Administration, the UF Athletic Association, the Student Government Executive Committee, the Student Senate and any other group or business with whom the organization regularly does business.
- 216.32 The Chairperson shall make an oral report to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress of ACCENT.
- 216.4 The Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 216.41 The Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 216.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall appoint another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays or academic breaks.
- 216.42 The Chairperson shall serve in office from the time that the Student Senate approves the appointment until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET.
- 216.43 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 216.44 Any replacement Chairperson approved shall serve only until the last day of



classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 216.4.

- 216.5 The ACCENT Chairperson shall appoint three (3) Vice-Chairpersons subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The vice-chairpersons shall assist the Chairperson in all phases of the operation of the organization and shall serve terms running concurrently with that of the Chairperson. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.

CHAPTER 217 UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA EXTERNAL AFFAIRS (92-140, 97-129, 2002-132, 2007-110, 2007-125, 2012-105, 2016-105)

- 217.1 External Affairs, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 217.11 A member of External Affairs may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 217.2 External Affairs shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to represent Student Government to any external legislature or municipality and shall coordinate all financial details of this representation.
- 217.3 There shall be an External Affairs Chairperson who shall be responsible for programs, finances, and overseeing all other activities of the External Affairs Program.
- 217.31 The Chairperson shall coordinate communications and serve as official liaison of Student Government to the U.S. Congress, the Florida State Legislature, and Local and County Municipalities, or any other external group or business with which the organization has regular contact.
- 217.32 The Chairperson may appoint an official delegate to serve as the official liaison between Student Government and any of the bodies referenced in 217.31.
- 217.33 The Chairperson shall make an oral reports to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the lobbying efforts of the University of Florida and Student Government.
- 217.4 The External Affairs Chairperson shall be appointed by the Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 217.41 The Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 217.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall appoint another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays or academic breaks.

- 217.42 The Chairperson shall serve in office from the time that the Student Senate approves the appointment until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET.
- 217.43 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 217.44 Any replacement Chairperson approved shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 217.
- 217.5 The External Affairs Director shall appoint no less than three (3) and no more than five (5) Affairs Directors subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The Affairs Directors shall serve terms running concurrently with the External Affairs Director. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the External Affairs Director and confirmed by the Student Body President.
- 217.51 The External Affairs Chairperson, with the consent of the Student Body President, shall assign to each Affairs Director a program that the Affairs Director is responsible for overseeing and/or a specific governmental agency that the Affairs Director will act as a liaison to on behalf of Student Government.
- 217.6 The External Affairs Chairperson shall appoint at least a Vice-Chair of Policy and a Vice-Chair of Community and Political Affairs subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The Vice-Chair of Policy shall be responsible for representing the interests of the students at the University of Florida on a state and national level. The Vice-Chair of Community and Political Affairs shall be responsible for representing the interests of the student on a local Level.

## CHAPTER 218 - CHOMP THE VOTE (2008-103, 2016-105)

- 218.1 Chomp the Vote, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance or nonfeasance.
- 218.11 A member of Chomp the Vote may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 218.2 Chomp the Vote shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to provide the students of the University of Florida with the opportunities to register or update their voter information, educate students about political issues, and provide conducive measures to encourage students to vote. All of these duties shall be performed in a non-partisan and legal way as defined by the State of Florida Statutes.
- 218.3 There shall be a Chomp the Vote Chairperson who shall be responsible for overseeing all activities of the Chomp the Vote Program.
- 218.31 The Chairperson shall make a good faith effort to work with the ideals and goals of the Alachua County Supervisor of Elections and shall make every effort to keep the aforementioned body informed of its activities.
- 218.32 The Chairperson shall make an oral reports to the Student Senate at least twice once a semester regarding its registration, education, and mobilization efforts.
- 218.4 The Chomp the Vote Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 218.41 The Director shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 218.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall select another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 218.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 218.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 218.
- 218.44 Any replacement Director approved shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 218.4.
- 218.5 The Chomp the Vote Chairperson shall appoint the number

officials and program members that is deemed necessary to effectively achieve the program's goals. The organizational structure shall be left up to the Chomp the Vote Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President

218.51 The Chairperson shall make a good faith effort to promote non-partisan registration, education and mobilization.

CHAPTER 219 - S.T.A.A.R. (STUDENTS TAKING ACTION AGAINST RACISM) (93-132, 96-131, 2007-128, 2014-112, 2016-105)

- 219.1 S.T.A.A.R. shall be an official agency of Student Government, and shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from positions those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 219.11 A member of S.T.A.A.R. may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 219.2 S.T.A.A.R. shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is promoting better relations within the University of Florida campus and Gainesville community through a series of community service projects, meetings, and other activities that may promote racial harmony.
- 219.3 There shall be a S.T.A.A.R. Chairperson who shall be responsible for scheduling, budgeting, promoting, and overseeing all other activities of S.T.A.A.R..
- 219.31 The Chairperson shall make an oral reports to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress of the S.T.A.A.R.agency.
- 219.4 The Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 219.41 The Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 219.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall appoint another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 219.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.

- 219.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 219.4.
- 219.44 Any replacement. Chairperson approved shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 219.4.
- 219.5 Each member of S.T.A.A.R. will focus on a different aspect of racism and ways to improve existing problems within the University of Florida campus and throughout the Gainesville community, through the above mentioned activities. These activities are at the member's discretion and are subject to confirmation by the S.T.A.A.R Chairperson.
- 219.6 The Chairperson will appoint one (1) Vice Chair subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Chairperson.

CHAPTER 220 Action SG (... , 97-108, 97-113, 2007-126, 2012-105, 2016-105)

- 220.1 Action SG, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 220.11 A member of Action SG may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 220.2 Action SG shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to coordinate with the Student Body President the completion of the executive agenda and to promote student awareness in regard to the actions of Student Government.
- 220.21 Action SG shall be responsible for:
1. Social Media content of Student Government events, activities, and interests.
  2. Content for the Student Government website
  3. Organizing outreach to students and student organizations on behalf of the Student Body President.
- 220.22 For the purpose of the agency, technical equipment will be defined as any Audio or Video equipment owned by Student Government, with the exception of any equipment expressly intended for office use.
- 220.3 There shall be an Action SG Chairperson who shall be responsible for overseeing all responsibilities of Action SG.
- 220.31 The Chairperson shall serve as a liaison between the UF administration, the Student Body, the Student Senate and any other group or individual with whom Action SG maintains a relationship.
- 220.32 The Chairperson shall make an oral report to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress of Action SG.
- 220.4 The Action SG Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 220.41 The Chairperson must shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.



- 220.411      Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall select another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 220.42      Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 220.43      The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 220.
- 220.44      Any replacement Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 220.4.
- 220.5      The Chairperson shall appoint no more than four (4) Vice-Chairpersons subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The organizational structure shall be left up to the Action SG Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.

CHAPTER 221 – NIGHTLIFE NAVIGATOR (2008-148, 2009-110, 2016-105)

- 221.1 Nightlife Navigators, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance or nonfeasance.
- 221.11 A member of Nightlife Navigators may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 221.2 Nightlife Navigators shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to inform University of Florida students about nighttime transportation options so that students can safely navigate their way to and from nightlife destinations without drinking and driving. A major goal of Nightlife Navigators is to improve nightlife transportation options.
- 221.3 There shall be a Nightlife Navigators Chairperson who shall be responsible for overseeing all activities of the Nightlife Navigators.
- 221.31 The Chairperson shall make an oral reports to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding its efforts.
- 221.4 The Nightlife Navigators Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 221.41 The Nightlife Navigators Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 221.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall select another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window to select another candidate. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 221.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 221.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 221.4.
- 221.44 Any replacement Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 221.4.
- 221.5 The Nightlife Navigators Chairperson shall appoint the number officials and program members that is deemed necessary to effectively achieve the program's goals. The organizational structure shall be left up to the Nightlife Navigators Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.

CHAPTER 222 – GATORS GOING GREEN (2009-112, 2012-105, 2016-105)

- 222.1 Gators Going Green, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 222.11 A member of Gators Going Green may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 222.2 Gators Going Green shall be an agency of Student Government whose mission is to constantly work towards implementing policies and programming which brings about sustainable improvements to the University of Florida. Gators Going Green seeks to be the link between Student Government and the Student Body, the University of Florida, and the Gainesville Community by promoting sustainable initiatives, addressing the needs of the student body for future generations, and establishing a permanent culture of environmental awareness.
- 222.3 There shall be a Gators Going Green Chairperson who shall be responsible for overseeing all activities of Gators Going Green.
- 222.31 The Chairperson shall coordinate communications and serve as a liaison between the agency and the Office of Sustainability, the UF Administration, the Student Body President, the Student Senate and any other group or business with whom the organization does business.
- 222.32 The Chairperson may appoint staff members to serve as liaisons between the agency and any of the groups or businesses as mentioned in 222.31.
- 222.33 The Chairperson shall make an oral report to the Student Senate every at least once per semester on its progress in sustainability.
- 222.4 The Gators Going Green Chairperson shall be appointed by the Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 222.41 The Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 222.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall select another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 222.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.

- 222.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 222.4.
- 222.44 Any replacement Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 222.4.
- 222.5 The Gators Going Green Chairperson shall appoint a Treasurer, subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The Treasurer shall, in conjunction with the Chairperson, formulate a budget and handle all monetary matters. The Treasurer shall not, however, have veto power over the decisions of the Chairperson. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Gators Going Green Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.
- 222.6 The Gators Going Green Chairperson shall appoint a Vice- Chairperson, subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.

## CHAPTER 223 – FRESHMAN LEADERSHIP COUNCIL (2013-107, 2016-105)

- 223.1 Freshman Leadership Council, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 223.11 A member of the Freshman Leadership Council may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 223.2 Freshman Leadership Council shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to provide personal, professional, and leadership growth opportunities for a select group of freshmen students through service, programming, and educational experiences that impact the University of Florida (UF) Student Body and surrounding community.
- 223.3 There shall be a Freshman Leadership Council Chairperson who shall be responsible for overseeing implementation of all responsibilities of the Freshman Leadership Council.
- 223.31 The Chairperson shall serve as a liaison between the UF administration, the Student Body President, and the council.
- 223.32 The Chairperson shall make an oral report to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding its efforts.
- 223.4 The Freshman Leadership Council Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 223.41 The Chairperson must be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 223.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall select another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 223.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 223.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 223.4.
- 223.44 Any replacement Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the

Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 223.4.

- 223.5 The Chairperson shall appoint four (4) or five (5) Vice-Chairpersons, subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Chairperson.
- 223.6 No member of the Freshman Leadership Council Director Team shall be a first-year student.

CHAPTER 224 UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA GATOR INNOVATORS (2014-104, 2016-105)

- 224.1 Gator Innovators, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President, who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 224.11 A member of Gator Innovators may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 224.2 Gator Innovators shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to collaborate with the Gainesville community and beyond to foster the startup, innovation, and entrepreneurship communities.
- 224.3 There shall be a Gator Innovators Chairperson who shall be responsible for programs, finances, and overseeing all other activities of the Gator Innovators Program.
- 224.31 The Gator Innovators Chairperson shall make an oral report to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress and efforts of Gator Innovators.
- 224.4 The Gator Innovators Director shall be selected by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 224.41 The Gator Innovators Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the Student Senate.
- 224.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall, within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window, select another candidate. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 224.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 224.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 224.4.
- 224.44 Any replacement Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 224.4.
- 224.5 The Gator Innovators Director may shall appoint Vice-Chair(s), subject to confirmation by the Student Government Executive Committee Student Body President. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Gator Innovators Director and confirmed by the Student Body President.

CHAPTER 225 UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA YOUNG LEADERS CONFERENCE (2014-105, 2016-105)

- 225.1 Young Leaders Conference, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 225.11 The action of the Student Body President to remove a member of Young Leaders Conference should be approved by The Chairperson may also be subject to impeachment by the Student Senate under the process established by the Student Body Constitution or by a recall referendum as enumerated in section 307.2
- 225.2 Young Leaders Conference shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to educate and empower collegiate peers in order to develop a high school conference focused on developing future leaders.
- 225.3 There shall be a Young Leaders Conference Chairperson who shall be responsible for programs, finances, and overseeing all other activities of the Young Leaders Conference Program.
- 225.31 The Young Leaders Conference Chairperson shall make an oral reports to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress and efforts of the Young Leaders Conference.
- 225.4 The Young Leaders Conference Chairperson shall be selected by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 225.41 The Young Leaders Conference Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds~~ ~~(2/3)~~ majority vote of the Student Senate
- 225.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall, within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window, select another candidate. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 225.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 225.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 225.4.
- 225.44 Any replacement Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8am ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 225.4.
- 225.5 The Young Leaders Conference Chairperson shall appoint Vice-Chair(s), subject to confirmation by the Student Body President. The remainder of the organizational structure shall be left up to the Young Leaders Conference Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.



## CHAPTER 227 THE BIG EVENT (2017-105)

- 227.1 The Big Event, as an agency of Student Government, shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 227.11 A member of The Big Event may also be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 227.2 The Big Event shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to provide students an opportunity to engage in community service projects that not only serve to benefit the Gainesville community, but also promote stronger ties between the University of Florida students and faculty with all parts of Gainesville.
- 227.3 There shall be a Chairperson of The Big Event who shall be responsible for coordinating and overseeing all activities of The Big Event.
- 227.31 The Big Event Chairperson shall make an oral report to Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress and efforts of the Big Event.
- 227.4 The Big Event Chairperson shall be appointed by the Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 227.41 The Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 227.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall appoint another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays or academic breaks.
- 227.42 The Chairperson shall serve in office from the time that the Student Senate approves the appointment until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8AM ET.
- 227.43 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 227.44 Any replacement Chairperson approved shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8AM ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 227.4.
- 227.5 The Big Event Chairperson shall appoint the number of officials and program members that is deemed necessary to effectively achieve the program's goals. The organizational structure shall be left up to The Big Event Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.

## CHAPTER 228 THE FLORIDA STUDENT GOVERNMENT INSTITUTE (2017-105)

- 228.1 The Florida Student Government Institute, as an agency of Student Government shall operate under the authority of the Student Body President who shall be empowered to remove from position those individuals guilty of malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance.
- 228.11 A member of the Florida Student Government Institute may be removed by following the procedures as outlined per the 300 Codes of the Student Body Statutes.
- 228.2 The Florida Student Government Institute shall be an agency of Student Government whose purpose is to host a leadership conference for Florida institutions of higher education in order to facilitate collaboration between student leaders from each school regarding their respective Student Government.
- 228.3 There shall be a Florida Student Government Institute Chairperson who shall be responsible for scheduling, budgeting, promoting, and overseeing all other activities of the Florida Student Government Institute.
- 228.31 The Chairperson shall make oral reports to the Student Senate at least once a semester regarding the progress of the Florida Student Government Institute.
- 228.4 The Chairperson shall be appointed by the new Student Body President within fourteen (14) days of taking office.
- 228.41 The Chairperson shall be confirmed by a ~~two-thirds (2/3)~~ majority vote of the members present and voting of the Student Senate.
- 228.411 Should the Student Senate not confirm the candidate for Chairperson, the Student Body President shall appoint another candidate within an immediately renewed thirty (30) day window. This procedure shall apply every time a confirmation is not attained. This window shall not apply during recognized University holidays and academic breaks.
- 228.42 Should the Chairperson resign or be removed from office, a successor shall be appointed through the same procedure used to make the original appointment.
- 228.43 The Chairperson shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8AM ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 228.4.
- 228.44 Any replacement Chairperson approved shall serve only until the last day of classes in the Spring semester at 8AM ET, unless reappointed pursuant to 228.4.
- 228.5 The Florida Student Government Institute Chairperson shall appoint the number of officials and program members that is deemed necessary to effectively achieve the program's goals. The organizational structure shall be left up to the Florida Student Government Institute Chairperson and confirmed by the Student Body President.



4/19/19

Libby Shaw  
Senate President

Date

Vetoed; see letter



Ian Green  
Student Body President

Date - Senate Secretary

Dr. Dave Parrott  
Vice President of Student Affairs

Date